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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners
Burke County, Georgia

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the agglegate remaining fund information of Burke County, Georgia, as of
and for the year ended September 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County's
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. We did not audit the financial statements of the Burke County Board of
Health (Health Department), a discretely presented component unit, which represents l%o and .030/0, respectively, of the assets and net
position of Burke County, Georgia. We did not audit the financial statements of the Burke County Hospital Authority, a discretely
presented component unit, which represents 5,9o/o and.9%, respectively, of the assets and net position of Burke County, Georgia.

Manøgement's Responsibility for the Financlal Støtemenß

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of frnancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's Resp onsíb Íllty

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the fìnancial statements of
the Burke County Board of Health (Health Department), a discretely presented component unit, which represents lYo and .03Yo,

respectively, of the assets and net position of Burke County, Georgia. We did not audit the financial statements of the Burke County
Hospital Authority, a discretely presented component unit, which represents 5.9o/o and,90lo, respectively, of the assets and net position
of Burke County, Georgia. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us,

and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Burke County Board of Health (Health Department) and the Burke
County Hospital Authority, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to fìnancial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation ofthe financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such

opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the fïnancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opínions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position ofthe governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
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component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Burke County, Georgia as of September 30, 2018,

and ihe respective budgetãry comparison for the General Fund and the Fire Protection Special Revenue Fund for the year then ended in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Othet Matteß

Required Suppl ementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability
and Relateã Ratios andthe Schedule of Contributions on pages 44 and 45 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such

information, although not a part of the basic {ïnancial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who

considers it to be an essential part offinancial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,

or historical context, We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing

standards generally accepted in ttre United States of America, which consisted of inquiries ofmanagement about the methods ofpreparing

the informãtion and comparing the information for consistency with management's response to our inquires, the basic financial statements,

and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic fìnancial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance

on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any

assurance.

Management has omitted the management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic

financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial

reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the

basic financial statements is not affected by the missing information.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise Burke County,

Georgia's basic fînancial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund fÌnancial statements and schedules and schedule

of projects paid with SPLOST proceeds are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic

financial statements,

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, and schedules of projects paid with SPLOST
proceeds are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other

records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the

audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic frnancial statements

themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund fìnancial statements and schedules, and schedules of projects
paid with SPLOST proceeds are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Governmenl Aud¡l¡ng Stsndørds

InaccordancewithGovernmentAuditingStandards,wehavealsoissuedourreportdatedJuly ll,2019,onourconsiderationoftheBurke
County, Georgia's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,

contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results ofthat testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in

considering Burke County, Georgia's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

{-;,^,Ð.nÃ-+ QbfëL
Statesboro, Georgia
July I1,2019
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 201 81f)

Primary Government Component Units
Gov€mmental

Activities
Business-type

Activities
Health

471,817
462.149

I 8,028

69,067

Hospital
Authority

Development
Authority

s 2,713,407
250,000

1 65,1 95

t,375

Total Department

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash
Investments
Receivables:

Taxes

Intergovenilnental
Intemal balances

Other
Prepaid iterns

Inventories
Totâl Current Assets

Restricted C¡sh

Cap¡tal Assets:
Nondepreciable capital assets

Depreciable capital assets, net

Total Capital Asscts

Totâl Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLO\ryS OF RESOURCES
Resources related to pensions

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Intergovenxnental payable

Accrued payroll
Retirement contributions payable

Uneamed revenue

Compensated absences payable

Accrued landfill closure and postclosure care costs

Line ofcredit
Capital leases payable

Notes payable

Total Current Liabilities

L¡qng-Term Liâbilities:
Ñet pension obligation
Other post ernployment benefits obligation
Compensated absences payable (net ofcurrent portion)
Accrued landfill closure and postclosure care costs (net

ofcunent portion)

Capital leases payable (net ofcunent portion)
Notes payable (net ofcunent portion)

Totâl Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Resources related to pensions

NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets

Restricted for:
Capital projects

Other purposes

Umestricted

Totål Net Posit¡on

55,392J20 2.452,ss4 57,844,874

99,932,457 2,284,37t 102,216,828

3,670,498 94,595

$ 5,515,697
35,739,44t

1,281,280
1,06 I,382

210,664
71,401

I 12,809

547,463
44,540,137

$ 5,515,697
35,739,441

I,281,280
I,063,380

$ 483,589

331,231

874,708
l4l,030
143,703

1,998

(2r0,664)
40,483

s

$

1 1 1,884
l 12,809

547,463
1 1 68.1 83) 44,37 t,954 1,02 I,061 t,974,261 3,129,977

I 1.409

17,275,734

38,1 16,586
1,137,225
|,315,329

t8,412,959
39,431,915 9,033

9,033

635,883
504,7 l0

42,286

I,182,879

|,229,065

66,705 4,689,140
4,010,856 97,149
4,077,561 4,786,289

r,030,094 6,063,231 7,916,266

3,765,093 238,078 29,986

4,061,826
283,146
668,383

69,974
2,664

66,427

96,6t4

l 8,660

4,158,440
283,146
687,043

69,974
2,664

68,424
19,580

I,804,578

593,268

147,484
220,104

4,642

126I,997
I 9,580

24,714

21,472

87,931
96, l 58

1,573,485

5,289,271 46,186 4,155,420 372,3565,152,420 I 36,85 r

10,865,934

597.840

3t7,226

l7,975

t,938,449

il,1 83,1 60

6r5,815

1,938,449

1t,463,774 2,273,650 13,737,424

307,704
2,408,718
2,716,422

6,87t,842

100,692

t,'t32

101,824

474,1 80r 6,616,194 2,410,501 19,026,695

1,551,567 42,762

2,452,554 57,844,874

9,649,979
12,902,510
4,963,534

64,836

9,033

(34,762\

_!____Øl2eL

lt,634

2,992,383 4,786,289

I 0,325
(3,811,319) 2,674,149

55,392,320

9,649,979
t2,902,5t0
7,490,385 (2.526.85 I )

$ 8s,435,r94 S (74,297) $ 8s,360,897

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATEMËNT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THF YEAR FNDED SFPTFMBER 30 2OI8

Prôorâñ RPvêñ¡,Þe

Operating Grants Capital Grants

ðdContributio¡s andContributìo¡s Activities

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Govemmental Business-type Hælth Hospital Development
Prosmr/Function

Primâry Govemñert
Govemñental Activities

General govemment

iudicial
Public efety
Public works
Hælth and welfare
Culture and recr%tion
Housing and development

I¡terest
Tot¡l govemmertal activities

Business-type Activities
Solid Waste

Transit

Totd businss-type activities

Total - Primary Govemment

Component Units:
Burke County Board ofHelth
Burke County Hospital Authority
Development Authority of Burke County

Total Component Units

Exoenses

773,832
t3,'t50,862

42t-485

Fæs, Fines, and
Chæqes for Sepices

1,340,904

345,198

2,744,649

(978,833)
(2,269,799)

(t't,286,7r0)
(6,726,s50')
(7,27s,57s)
(1,765,622)
(1, l9l,56r )

(37-494.650\

(3'1.494.650\

22,805,229
o ¿o, s7?

10,729,136

1,001,495

319,817

523,t73
283,587

45,155,070

fi.649-494\

4? 505 576

6,010,926

'19-424.264

Activilies

s (1,567,276)
fi53.4571

0-720-'133\

Total

(978,833)
(2,269,799)

(l 7,286,710)
(6,726,550)
('1,275,575)

(1,76s,622)
(1, l9l,s6l)

(37,494.6s0')

(t,s6'1,276)
(153,457)

(t,720,733)

Department Authority Authoritv

2,552,852 $

2,7t4,003
20,196,917

8,167,383

1,369,t33
2,006,360

t,349,645
145,688

108,338

233,1t5
99,006

105,137

20,824
93,558

95,050

23,3 l8

60,481

1,420,009

26,428

44,356.353 4.684.777 670.008 1.506.918

t,994,478 427,202
420,038 108,646 157,935

2,414,516 535,848 157,935

$ 46.770.869 $ s ))o 6)\ î 670 00R $ I 664 R5i (1,720,733) (39,215,383)

$

a,$6,942
10.345

$ 632.089 $ 103,831

$ 5,638,196
?49 ?56

s 324.276

s t4,946,t79 $ 8,692,861 $

,10 ?RS

a42.4'Ì4 $ 5.887.452

q 4R 501

48.501

6,324
620,538

39 549

666,41 I

666-41 1

'114,912

6 745 526

Gener¡l R€venues

Prope¡ty tues levied for:
General purposes

Fire protection
Sales tães
Insuruce premium til
Other tães
Inte¡est smed
Miscellanæus
Gain (loss) on sale of €pihl æsts

Total Geneml Revenues

Transfers

Total General Revenues and T¡msfers

Change in Net Position

Net Posit¡on, Beginning ofYær' as Rstated

Nêt Position, End ofYear $ 85,435,194 $

103,831 324,276

13 058ì

22.805,229
o ¿ot <?1

10,729.t36
1,001,495

319,877

523,t73 19,381 10,133

283,587 - 49,162
(3,058) 3s6,Zs0

(3.058) 45,152,012 19,381 415,545

1 649 494

1 646 436 45,152,0t2 19,381 415,545

(74,297) 5,936,629 123,212 739,421

(74-297\
-!----qr¡9qg2z- -!--9sr2Ð- -!---Gq!É.LD-

See accompanyrng notes to the basic financial statements.
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,20I8

General

$ 1,122,513
26,'.722,t66

t,266,438
287,484

1,120,034
I I 2.809

Fire
Protection

s 9,034

SPLOST III

Other
Capital Projects

Fund

Other
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

$

ASSETS
Cash

Investmgnts
Receivables:

Taxes
Intergovernmental
Other

Due fiom other funds
Prepaid items

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued payroll
Retirement contribution payable

Intergovernmental payable

Due to other funds
Unearned revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue - property taxes

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

TOTALFUND B.ALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

$ 3t,23t,444 _$__qË2,q9_ $ 6,782,742 994 $ 7,588,579 $ 58,538,569

3,696
6,575,170

203,876

$ 4,380,4s4 $

2,442,105

570,022
53,373

142,625

5,5r5,697
35,739,44t

14,842

l 8,028
6,tt'7,906 $ 6,775,994

I,281,280
l ,061 ,382

71,401
14,756,559

I 12,809

$6,

$ 764,562
379,835

69,974

14,028,045

$ I 86,327 $
248,25t

2,077,254 $

3,080
257,865

109,926 $

6,370
3,738,069

634,456
69,974

283,146
l 5,396,388

2,664

$

280,066
I,l 10,478

2,664

15,242,416 434,578

24,485 8,93s

I I 2,809
5,716,297

2,338,199 2,109,504 20,124,697

33,420

4,444,543 5,6 I 5,655

( l 36,580)

I 12,809

15,776,495
6,775,994
6,777,550
8,937,604

6,775,994

6,777,550
9,074,184

1s,964,543 5,716,297 4,444,543 6,775,994

g 31,231,444 _$__ÉJr2¡t-a_ s 6,782,742 g 6,77s,994

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement

of net position are different because:

Total Govemmental Fund Balances

Capital assets used in govemmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Cost

Less accumulated depreciation

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period

expenditures and therefore are reported as unavailable revenue

in the funds:
Property taxes

The intemal service funds are used by management to charge the costs

of the operation and maintenance of facilities and the vehicle fleet to

individual funds. Certain assets and liabilities of the internal service

funds are included in governmental activities columns in the statement

of net position.

Deferred outflows related to pensions are not reported in the

govemmental funds.

Deferred inflows related to pensions are not reported in the

governmental funds.

The County's net pension obligation is not reported in the govemmental

funds but is in the statement of net position.

Long-term liabilities such as compensated absenses payable are

not due and payable in the current period and therefore are

not reported in the funds but are reported on the statement of
net position.

Net Position Of Governmental Activities

s 109,382,747
(55,105,372)

$ 38,380,452

54,277,375

33,420

r,601,670

3,482,85r

(r,471,Q36)

(10,236,357)

(633,181)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BAI-ANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR T}IÊ YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2OI 8

Fire

Other
Capital Projects

Fund

Other
Govemmental

Funds

Total
Govemmental

FundsGeneral Protection SPLOST III
REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and permits

Charges for services

Fees, fines and forfeitures
Intergovemmental
Interest

Other
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Generâl govemment

Judicial
Public safety

Public works
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation

Housing and development

Capital outlay:

Judicial
Public safety

Public works
Housing and development

Intergovemmental
Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Sâle ofcâpital assets

Transfers in
Trânsfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER I,2OI7

$ 27,8s2,129
I 14,688

1,9 1 0,1 05

541 ,817
312,452

s22,909
llo ))a

3t,swn

$ 9,s04,860

1,152,003

K.iqs

1,698

$ I,951,949 $ 5,0s6,620 $

747,030
213,214
33 I,589
22,456
38.584

44,3 65,558
I 14,688

3,809, I 38

755,03 I

2,012,080
688,020
289,s09

1,281 ,591
142,655

10,745.009 3,376,195 6,409,493 52,034,024

2,243,885
2,594,871
8,918,162
4,455,428
7,275,096
|,964,309
|,073,717

10,219,645

9t0,671

I 81,578

980,337

73,797
128,077

12,750

2,634,t02
280,066

2,243,88s
2,776,449

20,118,144
4,455,428
7,348,893
2,092,386
|,073,7 t7

10,774,369

|,4't2,948
5,308,280

649,177

t0,774,369
489,527

2,674,178
369,1 l I

28,525,468 I I,130,316
_-__-___-j_ I,108,982 1,625,548

________________ 5,399,689 59,879,224

16 566

14.823.75t

2,977,859 (385,307)

38,845
l,040,000 3,224,007 $ 4,176,436 2t8,073

(55,000)
163.073

(tl,447 ,5s6) (7,84s,200)

38,845

8,658,5 l 6
(10,794,606)(7,s I 5,599)

(7 ,47 6,7 s4) 3,224,007

(3,224,007\
952,429

952,429

(2,097,24s)

(4,498,895)

20,463,438

654,693

5,06 l,604

(8,223,s49)

t2,668,092 5,823.565

|,172,877

4,306,1 98

(9,942,44s\

48,322,897

FUND BAIANCES, SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI8 $ I5,964,543 $ 5,716,297 S $ 6,775,994 $ s,479,07s $ 38,380,4s2

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FLIND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Net Change In Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds s (9,942,445)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,

in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated

over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This

is the amount by which capitalized capital outlays exceeded

depreciation expense in the current period.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current

financial resources are not reported as revenues in the goveÍrmental frinds

Property taxes:

Unavailable revenue @ 9/30118

Unavailable revenue @ 9/30117

Governmental funds do not report the cost of disposed capital assets but the

cost is reported on the statement of activities.

The internal service funds used by management to charge the costs of facilities

and vehicle maintenance to individual funds are not reported in the government-

wide statement of activities. Governmental fund expenditures and related

internal service fund revenues are eliminated.

The change in the net pension obligation and pension related deferred outflows

and inflows are reported on the govenimentwide statement of activities but
not in the governmental funds.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the

governmental funds.

Change In Net Position of Governmental Activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Depreciation expense

Capital outlay
s (3,664,324)

19,037,496

33,420
(s0.666)

15,373,172

(17,246)

(94,909)

760,008

(5,525)

(62,129)

$ 6,010,926



BURKE COUNTY, GBORGIA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI8

Original Budget Final Budget Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes:

Property

Local option sales

Alcoholic beverage

Insurance premium

Other
Licenses and permits

Charges for services

Fees, fines and forfeitures

Intergovernmental

Interest

Other
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Ceneral govemment:

Legislative
General adminishation
Elections
Board ofequalization
Legal services

Data processing

Tax commissioner

Tax assessor

Risk management

Audit fees

Records management

CSRA Regional Commission
Total general govemment

Judicial:
Clerk of Courts

Superior Court
State Court
State Court - Judge

State Court - Community Service

Solicitor's Offìce
Juvenile Court
District Attorney
Indigent defense

Magistrate Court
Probate Court

Total judicial

Public safety:

Animal control
School resource offìcers

Coroner
Jail

Sheriff
Total public safety

$ 21,693,690

4,1 00,000

70,000

920,000

r 51,000

96,800
1,802,250

401,000

227,800
l l l,085
107,200

s21,693,690

4,1 00,000

70,000

920,000

I 5 1,000

96,800

1,802,2s0
401,000
233,800

I I 1,085

224,005

$ 22,810,190

3,720,567
'76,765

I ,001,495
243,112
114,688

l,910,105
541,817

312,452
522,909
249,227

$ r,1 r 6,500

(379,433)

6,765
8l,495
92,1t2
17,888

107,855

140,817

78,652
411,824
)<')))

29,680,825 29,803,630 31,503,327 1,699,697

71,200
1,388,500

215,500
t4,95Q

100,000

25,000

488,246

4s9,67s
460,000

30,000

52;750
16,500

7l,200
918,473
215,500

14,950
100,000

32,250
498,296

459,675
460,000

30,000
52,750
16,500

70,443
428,762

189,021

8,523
55,292

33,450
507,',193

420,810
420,254

28,007

65,848
r5,682

757
489,711

26,479

6,427
44,708
(1,200)
(9,497)
38,865

39,746
1,993

( r 3,098)
818

3,322,321 2,869,594 2,243,885 625,709

606,800
428,030
25,800
76,400
14,500

203,600
I 07,800

l 70,000
206,000

423,000
156,650

608,527
428,030
25,800

76,400
14,500

203,600
107,800

170,000

20ó,000
423,000
156,650

604,586
398,717
26,631
69,860
15,698

1 89,1 78

104,527

168,878
419,544
436,001

161,251

3,94t
29,313

(831)
6,540

(l,1 98)
14,422

3,273

|,122
(213,s44)

(13,001)
(4,60r )

2,418,58Q 2,420,307 2,594,871 (174,s64)

4ó4,000
297,500

58,250
3,1 08,1 02

5,244,732

464,000
297,500

58,250
3,1 08,1 02

5,295,881

101,883

2',73,933

54,028
3,184,176
5,304,142

362,117
23,567
4,222

(76,074)
(8,261)

9,172,584 9,223,733 8,918,162 305,571

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2OI8

Original Budget

$ 4,346,050

Final Budget Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

s 4,442,153 $ 4,455,428 $ (13,275)
EXPENDITURES (Continued)

Highways and streets

Health and welfare:
Health department
Welfare
Senior citizens
Burke County Hospital Authorify

Total health and welfare

Culture and recreation:
Recreation
Museum
Library

Total culture and recreation

Housing and development:
Burke Office Park

County agent

Soil conservation
Georgia Forestry Commission
Planning commission
Chamber of commerce
Airport
Development Authority

Total housing and development

Total expenditures

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out
Sale ofcapital assets

Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

284,800
5,000

286,200
4,500,000
5,076,000 7,276,000 7,27s,096

284,800
5,000

286,200
6,700,000

330,672
5,000

273,738
6,665,686

(4s,872)

12,462

34,314
904

1,420,150
36,400

471.470

1,440,150
36,400

476,486

1,,462,295

28,277
413,803

(22,145)
8,1 89

2,683

1,928,020 1,953,036 1,964,309 (11,273)

214,500
229,800

36,350
34,000

290,354
21,750
36,r 00

210.385

214,500
229,800

36,350
34,000

290,354
21,750
36,100

210,38s

255,98t
219,806

36,162
32,631

289,443
27,750
7,559

210,385

(41,481)

9,994
188

1,369
911

28,541

1.,073,239 1,073,239 t,073,717 (478)

27,336,794 29,25 8,062 28,525,468 732,594

545,568 2,977,859 2,432,291

(7,540,467)
20,000

(7,943,731)
20.000

(7,5 l s,s99)
38,84s

428,132
18,845

(7,520,467)

$ (5,176,436)

(7,923,731) (',1,476,754) 446,9',t7

$ (7,378,163) (4,498,895)

20,463,438

$ 2,879,268

s ts,964,s43

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
FIRE PROTECTION FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENI.IES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES INFUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Original and

Final Budget

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes

Charges for services

Intergovernmental
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public safety

Capital outlay:
Public safety

Total public safety

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITLIRES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, BEGINMNG OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

Actual

$

10,028,060 10,745,009 716,949

$ 8,8s6,760
1,127,000

39,300

5,000

9,504,860 $

1,152,003

86,448
1.698

648,100

25,003
47,148
(3,302)

9,743,143

1,324,917

r0,219,645

9t0.671

(476,502)

414,246

I 1,068 ,060 I I,130,316 (62,256)

(1,040.000) (385,307) 654,693

i,040,000 1,040,000

$ 654,693 $ 654,693

5,061,604

S 5,716,297

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30. 201 8

Business Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Govemmental
Activities

Solid
Waste Transit Total

Internal

Service Funds

ASSETS
Current Assets

Accounts receivable

Intergovemmental
Due from other funds

Inventory
Total Cunent Assets

Noncunent Assets

Capital Assets

Land
Buildings and improvements

Machinery and equipment

Construction in progress

Less accumulated depreciation

Total Capital Assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Resources related to pensions

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll

Compensated absences payable

Accrued landfill closure and postclosure care costs

Due to other funds
Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
Compensated absences payable (net ofcunent portion)

Net pension obligation
Accrued landfill closure and postclosure care costs (net

of current portion)
Total Long-term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Resources related to pensions

NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets

Unrestricted

1,938,449 1,938,449
2,205,167 68,483 2,273,65Q 657,555

2,332,206 437,785 2,769,99t 1,018,347

28,560 14,202 42.762 80,s31

2,128,516 324,038 2,452,554
(2,s26,8s1)(430,553)

$ 32,218 $ (106,s15) $ (74,2e7)

$ 40,483

148,826
$ 1,998

40,483
1,998

148,826

$

$ 850,493

547,463

189,309 1,998 191,307 1,397 ,9s6

1,037,752
435,768

r,63Q,547

99,473
(1,07s,024) (12s,177)

324,038

1,Q37,752

435,768
2,079,762

99,473
(t,200,201)
2,452,554

1,103,976

738,013

(727,044)
1,114,945

449,215

t28,516t

)? 17,825 326,036 2,643,861 2,512,901

75 159 19,436 94,595 187,647

95,503
10,368

1,588

19,580

1,1 I I

8,292
409

359,490

96,614
18,660

1,997

19,580

359,490

323,757

33,927

3,1 08

127,039 369-302 496,341 360,792

14,295

252,423

3,680

64,803

17,975

3t7,226
27,978

629,5'77

1,tt4,945
486,725

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FT]NDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2018

Business Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities

Solid
Waste Transit Total

Internal
Service Funds

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services

Other

Total revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries

Employee benefits

Purchased services

Materials and supplies

Depreciation

Total operating expenses

oPERATTNG TNCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Intergovernmental

Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

TNCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS

TRANSFERS IN

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, OCTOBER I,2OI7

NET POSITION, SEPTEMBER 30, 20I8

$ 381,076

46,126

$ 108,646 $ 489,722

46.t26

3,517,465

t,247
$

427,202 108,646 535,848 3,518,712

297,102

108,882

1,326,15'7

106,649

155,688

187,599

62,503

50,832

65,800

53,304

484,701

I 7l ,385

1,376,989

172,449

208,992

891,679

342,439

3t2,700
1,629,597

70,49s

1,994,478 420.038 2,414,516 3,246,910

(1,56'1,276) (311,392) 1.878.668) 271,802

157,935

(3,058)

154,877

157,935

(3,058) 1,610

154,877 I ,610

(1,567,276)

1,599,494

( 1s6,5 r 5)

s0.000

(1,723,791)

1,649,494

273,412

486,596

32,218 ( 106,5 I s) (74,297) 760,008

841,662

s 32,218 $ ( 106,515) $ (74.297\ $ 1,601,670

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI 8

Business Type Activities - Enlemrise Funds

Governmental

Activities

Solid

Waste Transit Total

lnternal

Service Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers

Cash received from interfund charges

Cash payments to employees for salaries and benefits

Cash payments for goods and services

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCINC
ACTIVITIES
Operating grants

Advances from (to) other funds

Transfers in
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers frorn capital projects fund

Proceeds from sale of assets

Purchase of capital assets

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, OCTOBER 1,20I7

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, SEPTEMBER 30,2018

RECONCTLTATION OF OPERATINC INCOME (LOSS) TO NET

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATINC ACTIVITIES
Operating incorne (loss)

Adjustments:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Accounts receivable

Interfund receivables

Inventory
(Increase) decrease in defened outflow ofresources -

resources related to pensions

(Decrease) increase in deferred inflow ofresources -

resoufces related to pensions

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued landfill closu¡e and postclosure care costs

Accrued payroll

Cornpensated absences payable

Net pension obligation
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

$ 462,128 $ 139,046 $ 601,174

(1,498,664)

(1,439,441)

(652,224)

(l,614,988)

3,219,755
(1,224,129)

(1,768,612\

$

(402,90s) (249,319)

(116,324)

(226,s97) (1 227,014

(s r,339)

1,s99,494
1,724,752

76,091

100,5 06

_____________:_
176,597

76,091
49,167

1,599,494 486,s96

I,s48 ,1 55 486,s96

( 108,7 r4)

50,000 50,000

108 714
(58,714)

1,610

(715,220)

( 108,714) s0,000 (713,610)

$$ $ $

$ (1,567,276)

155,688

34,926

$ (3 r 1,392) $

53,304

30,400

(1,878,668) $

208,992

65,326

271,802

'10,49s

(298,9s7)
(63,176)

20,2t1

52,t06

236,861

4,160

5,539

('12,027)

6,734

17,361

(100,479)

34,621

(1,417)
4,401

(24,000)

_qg¿gu

2,878
(2,1s7)

( I s,1 53)

10,986

28,324

(r00,171)
34,621

1,461

2,244

(39, r 53)

4,252

10,963

308

s (226,597) $ (r,666,038) $ 227,014

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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BURKE COIINTY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FI.INDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

ASSETS

Cash

LIABILITIES
Due to other entities and individuals

$ 900,894

$ 900,894

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30,2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Introduction

The financial statements of Burke County, Georgia (the County) have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to govemmental
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standards setting body for
establishing govemmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The accompanying summary of the
County's more significant accounting policies is presented to assist the reader in interpreting the financial
statements and other data in this report.

Basis of accounting

The basic financial statements consist of the government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements,
and notes to the financial statements.

Government-wide statements - The statement of net position and the statement of activities report information on
all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary govemment and its component units. As a general rule, the effect
of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. These statements
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the County. Govemmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions.
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to extemal parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the different
business-type activities of the County and for each function of the County's govemmental activities. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with the program or function of the County's govemmental
activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients ofgoods or services offered by
the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes,
are presented as general revenues.

Fundfinancial statements -The fund financial statements provide information about the County's funds. Separate
statements for each fund category - govemmental, proprietary, and fiduciary - are presented, although the latter
is excluded from the government-wide financial statements. The emphasis of fund financial statements is onmajor
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and
enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property
taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as

revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met.
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus

and the modifìed accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are

recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they are "measurable and available"). "Measurable" means

the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The County considers all revenues available if
they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is

incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain
compensated absences and claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be

liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, interest and special assessments are susceptible to accrual. Sales taxes

collected and held by the state at year-end on behalf of the County are also recognized as revenue. Other receipts

and taxes become measurable and available when cash is received by the County and are recognized as revenue

at that time. Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if susceptible to accrual
criteria is met. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been

incurred and all other grant requirements have been met.

The accounts of the County are organized on the basis of funds. A fund is an independent fiscal and accounting
entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose

and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with financial-related legal and contractual
provisions. The minimum number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements.

The County reports the following major goverrlmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. The General Fund accounts for
all financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund. The primary revenue

sources are ad valorem taxes, fines and forfeitures, and various other taxes and charges. The primary expenditures

are for general administration, public safety, highways and streets, health and welfare, and culture and recreation.

Fire Protection Fund - This special revenue fund has been established to account for the County's fire tax to be

used for fire protection and emergency management activities.

Special Purpose Local Optíon Sales Tax (SPLOST) Iil Fund - This capital projects fund was established to

account for expenditures on capital improvements made by the County and financed through revenues from a
special purpose local option sales tax.

Other Capital Projects Fund - This fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the construction of a new

Judicial Center.

The County reports the following major enterprise funds:

Solid Waste Fund - The Solid Waste Fund is used to account for the collection and disposal of solid waste.
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Transit Fund - This fund is used to account for the operation and costs of Burke County Transit.

The County also reports two intemal service funds. The Vehicle Maintenance Fund is used to account for
operations that provide repairs and maintenance to the County fleet. The Facilities Maintenance Fund is used to
account for repairs and maintenance to County buildings and facilities. These services are provided to other
County departments on a cost-reimbursement basis.

The Countyhas adopted GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting of Proprietary Funds and

Other Governmental Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting, and has elected to follow GAAP prescribed

by GASB and all Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) standards issued prior to November 30, 1989.

Subsequent to this date, the County accounts for its business-type activities and enterprise funds of the primary
govemment as presented by GASB.

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and

expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a

proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Solid Waste and the
Transit Funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include
costs of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses

not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are custodial in nature and do not involve the measurement of operating
results. Such funds have no equity accounts since all assets are due to individuals or entities at some future time.
These funds account for assets held by the County in an agency capacity for individuals and other govemment
units. Fiduciary funds are accounted for on the accrual basis, much like that used for proprietary funds.

Fiduciary funds include all trust funds which account for assets held by the County as a trustee for individuals or
other government units.

Component Units

Discretely presented component units are presented in separate columns on the government-wide statement of net
position and statement of activities to emphasize legal separation from the County.

Those discretely presented component units are:

Development Authority of Burke County - This component unit column in the government-wide financial
statements includes the financial data of the Development Authority of Burke County. It is reported in a separate

column to emphasize that it is legally separate from the County. Governed by County appointment, this entity
was created for the purpose of promoting and developing trade, commerce, industry, and employment
opportunities in the County. Operations of the Development Authority are subsidized through the General Fund
as needed. No separate financial statements are issued for the Development Authority of Burke County.

-20-



BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Burke County Health Depørtmenr - This component unit column in the government-wide financial statements

includes the financial data of the Burke County Health Department. It is reported in a separate column to
emphasize that it is legally separate from the County. Govemed by a voting majority of board members appointed
by the County, this entity receives funding from Burke County. The Health Department has a June 30 year end,

and the financial statements included herein are as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018. Separate financial
statements have been issued and are available from the Burke County Health Department.

Burke County Hospital Authority - This component unit column in the govemment-wide financial statements

includes the financial data of the Burke County Hospital Authority. It is reported in a separate column to
emphasize that it is legally separate from the County. Governed by a voting majority of board members appointed
by the County, this entity receives funding from Burke County in the form of loan guarantees and appropriations.
The County has guaranteed Burke County Hospítal Authority Taxable Note, Series 20138 and Burke County
Hospital Authority Revenue Anticipation Series 2013A, which are collateralized by the revenues and funds of the
Authority, with the County's resources serving as the secondary source of repayment. The Hospital Authority
has a May 31 year end, and the financial statements included herein are as of and for the year ended May 31,

2018. Separate financial statements have been issued and are available from the Burke County Hospital Authority.

The following component unit has been included in the financial statements as a blended component unit:

Publíc Library - Governed by County appointment, this entity oversees the Burke County Library that is
available to the citizens of Burke County and the general public. No separate financial statements are issued for
the Public Library.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

l. Prior to September 30, the County administrator submits to the County Board of Commissioners a

proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing October 1. The operating budget includes
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. A public hearing is conducted by the County to obtain taxpayer comments.

3. The budget is legally enacted by resolution of the County Board of Commissioners.

4. The County administrator is authorized to transfer line item amounts within operating departments.

5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the General

Fund and Special Revenue Funds. Project length budgets are adopted for Capital Project Funds.

6. Budgets for the governmental funds are adopted on the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is
consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 _ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES _ Continued

Budget amounts reflected in the accompanying financial statements represent the original adopted budget and

any revisions approved by the County Board of Commissioners. The County Board of Commissioners approves

additi onal appropri ations or transfers between dep artments.

Encumbrances

The County does not employ encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other

commitments for expenditures are recorded as liabilities on the balance sheet when issued.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of financial statement presentation, the County considers all highly liquid investments with an

original maturity of three months or less, or with insignificant early withdrawal penalties, to be cash equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits and certificates of deposit at September 30, 2018.

Investments

The County follows GASB Statement No. 3I, Accounting and Financial Reportingþr Certain Investments and

þr External Investment Pools. Nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts (investments whose value

is not affected by interest rate or other market changes), include money market investments (short-term, highly
liquid debt instruments including commercial paper, banker's acceptances and U. S. Treasury and agency

obligations), that have a remaining maturity at purchase of one year or less are reported at cost or amortized cost

assuming their fair value has not been impacted by changes in the credit worthiness of the issuer or similar factors.

All other investments are reported at fair value (the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged

in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale).

Local government investment pool - The local govemment investment pool 'oGeorgia Fund 1", created by
O.C.G.A.$36-83-8, is a stable net asset value investment pool that follows Standard and Poor's criteria for AAA
rated money market funds. However, Georgia Fund I operates in a manner consistent with Rule 2A-7 of the
Investment Company Act of 1940 and is considered to be a2A-7 like pool. The pool is not registered with the

SEC as an investment company. The pool's primary objectives are safety of capital, investment income, liquidity
and diversification while maintaining principal ($1.00 per share value). The Office of State Treasurer is the

regulatory oversight agency.

Receivables

All receivables are reported at their netrealizable value.

Inventories

Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption stated on a first-in, first-out basis. They are

reported at cost and are recorded as expenditures at the time the individual inventory items are used.
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BURKE COUNTYO GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Prepaid ltems

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the govemment-wide financial statements. Capital assets are

defined by the County as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in
excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset

life are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as the projects are constructed. Interest incurred
during the construction phase of proprietary assets is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets

constructed. All reported capital assets are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful
lives of the related capital assets.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment
Infrastructure

20 - 40 years
10 years

5 - 10 years
20 years

Infrastructure acquired prior to June 20, 1980, is not reported.

Compensated Absences

County employees are entitled to certain compensated absences based on their length of emplo¡rment. County
employees may earn vacation time up to a maximum of fifteen (15) days per year, which is vested. As in prior
years, compensated absences are liquidated through the General Fund.

Interfund Transactions

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or
services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as interfund receivables and interfund payables
on the balance sheet of the fund financial statements and as internal balances on the statement of net position
in the govemment-wide financial statements. Internal balances are eliminated in the government-wide financial
statements.
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses. Transactions that constitute

reimbursement to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made on behalf of another fund are recorded as

expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is
being reimbursed. All other interfund transactions, except quasi-extemal transactions and reimbursements, are

reported as transfers.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term liabilities are reported as liabilities in the applicable govemmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred

outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a

consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The County has only one item that qualifies for reporting in this
category. It is resources related to pensions reported at the government-wide level for governmental and business-

type activities and at the fund level for proprietary funds.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an

acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will notbe recognized as an inflow of resources

(revenue) until that time. The County has an item which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting

that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the ítem, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the
govemmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from property taxes.

This amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amount becomes available.

The County also has deferred inflows of resources related to its pension plan at the government-wide level for
governmental and business-type activities and at the fund level for proprietary funds.

Fund Equity

Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as "fund balance". Fund equity for
all other reporting is classified as "net position".

Fund Balance - Generally, the fund balance represents the difference between the current assets and current
liabilities. In the fund financial statements, govemmental funds report fund classifications that comprise a

hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the County is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes

for which amounts in those funds can be spent. Fund balances are classified as follows:
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BURKE COUNTYO GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent

because they are either not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
It includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash, for example, inventories and prepaid

amounts.

Restricted - The restricted fund balance classification includes amounts that are either restricted

extemally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other goverTrments or restricted by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed - The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can only be used for
specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the County's highest level of
decision making authority. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the
County removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action it employed to previously
commit those amounts.

Assigned - The assigned fund balance classification includes amounts that are constrained by the
County's intent to be used for specific purposes but are not restricted or committed. The authority for
making an assignment is not required to be the County's highest level of decision-making authority and

as such, the nature of actions necessary to remove or modify an assignment does not require the County's
highest level of authority.

Unassigned - The unassigned fund balance classification includes the residual amounts of fund balances

that do not meet any of the above criteria. The County reports positive unassigned fund balance only in
the General Fund. Negative unassigned fund balances may be reported in all funds.

Flow Assumptions - When both restricted and unrestricted amounts of fund balance are available for use for
expenditures incurred, it is the County's policy to use restricted amounts first and then unrestricted amounts as

they are needed. For unrestricted amounts of fund balance, it is the County's policy to use fund balance in the

following order:

o Committed
o Assigned
o Unassigned

Net Position - Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net investment in capital

assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any

borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as

restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the

County or through extemal restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other
governments. All other net position is reported as unrestricted.

The County applies restricted resources first when as expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted

and unrestricted net position is available.
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
managsment to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from these amounts.

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

At September 30, 2018, the County had the following investments:

Investments Maturities

Primary Government:

Georgia Frnd I Average of 62 days WAM S 35,739,441

Fair Value Credit Rating

AAAf

Discretely Presented Component Units -

Development Authorþ of Burke County:

Certificates ofDeposit

Burke County Board ofHeafth:
Pacific Life Index Fund

_t__250,000_

s 462,149

Interest Rate Risk - The County does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a

means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk - State statutes authorize the County to invest in obligations of the State of Georgia or other states;

obligations issued by the U.S. government; obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the U.S. government or by
a goveÍìment agency of the United States; obligations of any corporation of the U.S. government; prime banker's
acceptances; the local government investment pool established by state law; repurchase agteements; and
obligations of other political subdivisions of the State of Georgia.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
a depository financial institution, the County will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. State statutes require all deposits (other than
federal or state government instruments) to be collateralized by depository insurance, obligations of the U.S.
government, or bonds of public authorities, counties, or municipalities.

Custodial Credit Rísk - Investments - Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of failure
of the counterparty, the County will not be able to recover the value of the investments or collateral securities that
are in the possession of an outside party. State statutes require all investments (other than federal or state

goveÍtment instruments) to be collateralized by depository insurance, obligations of the U.S. government, or
bonds of public authorities, counties, or municipalities.
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

At September 30, 20T8, the carrying amount of the County's deposits (checking and certificates of deposit) was

56,416,591 and the bank balance was $6,503,560. Of the bank balance, $1,611,301 was covered by federal

depository insurance and54,892/59 was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's
trust department or agent in the County's name.

Presented Com U
At September 30, 2018, the carrying amount of deposits (checking and certificates of deposit) for the

Development Authority of Burke County was $2,963 ,407 and the bank balance was $2,963 ,407 . Of the bank
balance, $500,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and 52,463,407 was collateralized by securities

held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent in the Authority's name.

At June 30,2018, the canying amount of the Burke County Health Department's bank deposits was $471,817
and the bank balance was $480,658. Of the bank balance, $410,000 was covered by federal depository insurance

and $70,658 was collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent

in the Health Department's name.

At May 3I,2018 the carrying amount of the Burke County Hospital Authority's bank deposits was $494,998 and

the bank balance was $559,967. Of the bank balance, $532,058 was covered by federal depository insurance and

527 ,909 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

NOTE 3 _ RECEIVABLES

Receivables at September 30, 2018, consisted of taxes, accounts (billings for user charges), and intergovernmental
receivables arising from grants.

Receivables are recorded on the County's financial statements to the extent that the amounts are detennined to be

material and substantiated not only by supporting documentation, but also by a reasonable, systematic method of
determining their existence, completeness, valuation, and collectibility. The allowances for uncollectibles netted

against receivables at September 30, 2018 follow:

Fund

Allowance for
Uncollectibles

Fire Protection
Solid Waste

General

206,774
826

121,839

$

NOTE4-PROPERTYTAXES

The County's Tax Commissioner bills and collects property taxes, then remits to the County its respective share

of property taxes. Property taxes are an enforceable lien on property owned as of January 1. Taxes are typically
levied in October and may be paid after receipt of the tax bill. Taxes are considered delinquent 61 days after
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4 - PROPERTY TAXES (continued)

mailing by the Tax Commissioner. Property tax revenues are recognized when they become measurable and

available. Available revenues include those property tax receivables expected to be collected within 60 days.

Property taxes are recorded as receivables when levied.

Current yearpropertytaxes were levied on December 18, 2017, and due February 28,2018. A summary of the
current year property hx levy is as follows:

General

Fund

Fire Protection

Fund

Millage rates

Unincorporated

Incorporated

Property tax levy

Property taxes receivable at September 30, 2018

A llowance for unco llectible accounts

s.974

6.221

2.696

2.696

s 21,691,796 $ 9,421,174

$ 162,451

(121,839)

$ 59,367

(44,525)

$ 40,612 $ 14,842

8,935

Net property taxes receivable at September 30, 2018

Unavailable property taxrevenue at September 30, 2018 $ 24,485 $

NOTE 5 - PUBLIC UTILITIES TAX

Public Utility taxes accounted for approximately 84% of the current year tax digest.
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE6-CAPITALASSETS

Governmental activities capital asset activity (including the vehicle maintenance and facilities maintenance
internal service funds) for the year ended September 30,2018, was as follows:

Balance
10/t/2017 Additions Deductions

Balance
9/30/2018

Govemmental Activities :

C.apital assets not being depreciated:
I¿nd
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
lnfrastructure
Buildings and irnprovements
Fumiture, futures, and equipnrcnt

Total capital assets being depreciated

Total capital assets

Accumulated depreciation :

Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Fumiture, fudures, and equiprnent

Total accumulated depreciation

$ 3,163,931

3,oll,o76
$ 3,163,931

s 11,100,727 14,l 1 I ,803
6,175,007 11,100,727 77,275,734

M,665,014
21,311,966

19,969,330

5,196,467
910,600

2,544,928

49,861,475

22,222,566
21,864,961s 649,297

85,946,3r0 8,651,989 649,297 93,949,002

92,t2r,3r7 t9,752,716 649,297 r1t,224,736

27,321,841

10,787,016
126

1,639,926

579,777

1,516,216

28,960,667
r1,366,793

15,504,956554J86
52,651,983 3,734,819 554,386 ss,832,416

C.ovemmental activities capital assets, net s 39.469.334 $ 16,017.897 $ 94,9tr S 55,392,320

Depreciation expense \Mas charged to functions as follows:

$ 319,646

1,042,077

187,574

20,24t

2,092,149

2,636

17,413

53,083

Total govemmental activities depreciation expense S 3,734,819

General govemrnent

Public safety

Culture and recreation

Health and welfäre

Public works

Housing and developrnent

Vehicle maintenance intemal service fund

Facility maintenance intemal service fund
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued

Business-type capital asset activity for the year ended September 30,2018 was as follows:

Balance
10/1/2017 Additions Deductions

Bus ines s -type activities :

Capital assets not being depreciated:
I-and

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

$ 1,037,752

s 99,473

1,037,752 99,473

Balance
9/30/2018

s r,037,7s2

99,473

1,137,225

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Total capital assets

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total accumu lated depreciation

Bus ines s-type activities capital
assets, net

91,084 $ 128-454

2,552,900 91,084 128,454 2,515,530

91,084 128,454 3,652,755

34,151

91,862
990.592 125,396

I,l 16,605 208,992 125,396 l,2oo,2o1

s 2,474,047 $ (117,908) $ 3,058 $ 2,4s2,554

$ 155,688

53,304

318,235

1r7,533

2,117,132

318,23s

117,s33

2,079,762

9,485

4,741

194,766

43,636

96,603

1,059,962

Depreciation expense was charged as follows:

Solid rùy'aste Fund

Trans it Fund

Total bus ines s -type activities depreciation eryens e s 208,992
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued

Capital asset activity for the Development Authority component unit for the year ended September 30, 2018
was as follows:

Balance

10/r/2017

Balance

9/30/2018

Capital assets not being depreciated:

I'and
I-and held for sale

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated

Buildings

Machinery and equipment

Improvements

Total capital assets being depreciated

Accumulated depreciation:

Buildings

Machinery and equipment

Improvements

Total accumulated depreciation

Development Authority capital

assets, net

$ 21,852

4,496,099

Additions Deductions

$ 6,169

$ 177,358

$ 21,952

4,489,930

177,358

4,517,957 177,358 6,169 4,689,140

105,484

25,499

31,147

162,130

38,897

13,054

4,901

105,484

25,499

31,147

162,130

2,636

3,643

1,850

41,533

16,697

6,751

s6,852 8,129 64,981

s 4,623,229 s 169,229 $ 6,169 s 4,786,289

Capital asset activity for the Health Department component unit for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as

follows:
Balance Balance
07/01/17 Additions Deductions 06/30/18

Capital assets being depreciated
Machinery and equipmnt $ 187,195 $ $ 187,195

Accumulated depreciation:
Machinery and equipment

Health Department capital assets, net

173.139 $ 5,023 178,162

$ 14,056 $ (s,023) $ $ 9,033
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued

Capital asset activity for the Hospital Authority component unit for the year ended May 3I,2018 was as

follows:

Balance
06/01/17 Additions Deductions

Balance
05/31/18

Capital assets not being depreciated:
I¿nd

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Total capital assets at historical cost

Iæs s accumulated depreciation

Hospital Authority capital assets, net

$ 66,705

930,090 8 321,899

$ 66,705

11,421,167

8,634,728
11,420,330

8,032,537
$ 837

19,519,572

(1s,663,344) 186,121

s 3,856,228 $ 363,lll s 141,778 $ 4,077,561

NOTET-LONG-TERMDEBT

The following is a summary of long-term debt activity for governmental activities and business type activities for
the year ended September 30,2018:

19,452,867 930,92"1

930,927

(567,8t6)

327,899 20,055,895

327,899 20,122,600

(16,045,039)

Balance
October l,

2017 Additions Reductions

Balance
September 30,

2018

Amounts
Due In

One Year

s 66,427

Governmental Activities
Compensated absences

payable

Net pension oblþation

Total Governmental Activities

Bus iness-Type Activities :

Compensated absences

payable

Accrued landfill closure and

postclosure care costs

Net pension obligation

Total Business-Type Activities

$ 12,917,309 S 1,235,319 $ 2,622,427 $ ll

$ 596,599

12,320,710

s 1,235,379 $ 1,167,651

1,454,776

s 664,267

10,865,934

l$ 66,427

Balance

October 1,

2017

Balance

September 30,

2018

Amounts

Due In
One YearAdditions Reductions

s 17,728 s 32,154 g 29,910 $ 19,972 $ 1,997

34,621

39,153

s 66,775 $ 69,063 S 2,295,227 S 21,577

l,g23,4og

356,379

l,g5g,o29

317,226

19,580

$ 2,297 .515
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

The following is a summary of long-term debt activity for discretely presented component units:

Balance

July 1,2017,
As restated Additions Reductions

Balance

June 30,

2018

Amounts
Due In

One Year
Health Department:
Net pension obligation

OPEB oblþation
Compensated absences

payable

Total Heahh Department

Deveþment Authority:
Net pension oblþtion
Compensated absences

payable

Total Deveþment Authority

Hospital Authority:
Series 2013 A Certificate
Series 20138 Taxable Note
Note Payable
Capital leases payable

Total HospitalAuthorþ

43,146 $ 33.484 34,344

$ 679,667

573,919

s 43,784

69,209

635,883

504,710

42,286

$ $

s1,296,732 s33,484 5147,337 $ 1,182,879 $

Balance
October l,

2017 Additions Reductions

Balance
September 30,

2018

Amounts
Due In

One Year

$ 110,581 $ 9,889 S 100,692

784 $ 8,033 8,559 1,258 $ 126

s 112,365 $ 8.033 $ 18,448$101,950$126

Balance
June l,
2017 Additions Reductions

Balance
May 31,

2018

Amounts
Due In

One Year

I t41,647
4,612,952

741,593

$ 36,951

l,3l3,o4g
163,889

$

s403,862
s5A96,092 $403,862 $ 1,513,889 $ 4,3 86.06s s1,796,970

104,696

3,2gg,go3

577,704

403,862

$ 36,951

1,313,049

22348s
223,485
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8 - EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS IN INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

Excess expenditures over appropriations for the year ended September 30, 2018 in the following departments in
the general fund:

Overexpenditures

Current:
Data Processing

Tax Commissioner

Records Management

State Court
State Court - Communþ Service

Indþent DeÊnse

Magistrate Court
Probate Court
Jail

Sheriff
Higþways and streets

Heafth Departnrcnt
Recreation

Burke Office Park

The County funded expenditures in excess of appropriations in the general fund through underexpenditures in
other departments.

Expenditures exceeded appropriations in the following funds and these overexpenditures were funded by
additional revenues over amounts budgeted and/or by available fund balance.

Overexpenditures

Special Revenue Fund:

Fire Protection

Public Library
Sheriffs Commissions

Accountabilþ Court

NOTE 9 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION

The following special revenue funds had deficit fund balances at September 30, 2018

$ l,zoo
9,497

13,098

831

l,lgg
213,544

13,001

4,601
76,074

8,261
13,275

45,872

22,745
41,481

$ 62,256
6,573

209,316
4,720

Small Grants Fund
Emergency Telephone System Fund
Large Grants Fund
Accountability Court Fund

$ 16,107
I15.387

2,659
2,427

These deficit fund balances will be reduced by future grant revenues, charges for services, and future transfers
from the County's General fund.

The Transit enterprise fund had a deficit net position of $106,515 at September 30, 2018, which will be reduced
by future Transit revenue and transfers from the General Fund.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 10 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, INTERF'UND PAYABLES AND TRANSF'ERS

A summary of interfund receivables and payables as of September 30,2018, follows. Interfund receivables and

payables accounts for loans between funds for cash management purposes. All amounts are expected to be paid

within one year.

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General

Other capital projects
Sheriffs commissions

Fire protection
Solid Waste

l,arge grants

Vehicle maintenance

Facilþ rnaintenance

Jail Surcharge

Victint's Assistance Fund

Drug Enforcenrent Ft¡nd

Drug Treatnrcnt & Rlucation Fund

Emergency telephone system

Small Grants Fund

Accountability court
Transit

SPLOST III
TSPLOST
General
General

General

General

General

General

General
Srnall Grants Fund

$ 4,000
3,376
9,642

233,286
62,969
25,004

359,490
257,865
764,402

6,775,994
132,862

6,117,906
148,826

1,964
463,996
386,497

7,799

Total

A summary of transfers for the year ended September 30, 2018 is as follows:

TransÊrs From:

$ 15,755,878

Transfers To:

General
Fund

T.SPLOST
Fturd

DrugTreatment
& Education

Fund

Other Capital

Projects
Fund Total

Fire Protection Fund

E91l Fund

Solid Waste Fund

Large Grants Fund

Transit Fund

Accourtab ility C ourt Fund

SPLOSTIII Fund

Other Capitral Projects Fund

Vehicle Maintenance Fund

Facilþ Maintenance Fund

Total

$ 1,040,000
133,007

1.,599,494

44,07r

35,995 $ 5,000

$ 1,040,000
133,007

l,5gg,4g4
44,071
50,000

40,995
3,224,007
4,176,436

114,096
372,500

$ 50,000

g 3,224,007

4,176,436
114,096
372,500

$ 7,5 15,599 S 50,000 $ 5,000 $ 3,224,007 s 10,794,606

Transfers between funds were routine and primarily to support the operation of the funds receiving transfers.
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11 _ FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

As of September 30, 2018, governmental fund balances are composed of the following:

Fire

Other
Capital

Proiects

Other
Governmental

Furds

Total
Governmental

Funds

$ 112,809

General Fund Protection SPLO ST III

Nonspendable:
Nonspendable - Prepaid items

Restricted:
Capital projects

Fire protection

Sheriff
Law library
Drug enforcement

Public library
Drug education

Jail
Emergency telephone system

Victims assìstance

Juvenile services
Accountability court

Total restricted

Commiued - Judicial Center
Assþed - subsequent year's budget

Unassþed
Toøl fund balances

$ I12,809

ss,716297
s4,444,543 $ 5205,436

166,870

20498
3s27t
u,136
39s2

83,120

6,889

9,483

9,&9,979
5,716297

166,870

20498
3s271
84,136

39s2
83,120

6,889

9,483

5,716297 4,444,543

s6,775,994

6,777,550
M (136,580)

sß9g,543 55,716297 54,444,543 s6,775,994 S 5A79,075 $38,380,452

NOTE 12 - RETIREMENT PLAN

Plan Descriplion

The County's defined benefit pension plan, the Burke County Defined Benefit Plan (the ooPlan"), provides

retitement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The Plan is affiliated with the

Association County Commissioners of Georgia (ACCG) Defined Benefit Plan (the "Plan"), an agent multiple-
employer public employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for
participating counties in Georgia. The specific benefit provisions of the County's plan were established by an

adoption agreement executed by the Burke County Board of Commissioners. The ACCG issues a publicly

available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The report

can be obtained by writing to GEBCorp, 400 Galleria Parkway, Suite 1250, Atlanta, Georgia 30339.

Benefits Provided

Atl full-time County and Development Authority (discretely presented component unit) employees are eligible to
participate in the Plan after reaching age 2l and completing at least one year of service.

5,615,655 15,776,495

6;77s994
6,777,550
8,937,6M
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 12 - RETIREMENT PLAN - Continued

Normal retirement age is 65. At that time, an employee is entitled to a lifetime pension equal to I.20o/o of
average annual compensation multiplied by the years of service (maximum of 40 years) plus .7 5o/o of average

annual compensation in excess of $10,000 multiplied by years of service (maximum 35 years). The .75o/o is

reduced to .70o/o for employees born after 1937 and reducedto .65% for employees born after 1954. Average
annual compensation is defined as the highest averago compensation over three consecutive plan years during
the 10 plan years preceding retirement or termination. An employee becomes 100% vested after completing
five years of service. These benefit provisions and all other requirements, including amendments or termination,
are established by County ordinance.

Emplovees bv Benefit Terms

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits

Deferred vested (former employees)

Active particþants

Total plan particþants

70
156
271

497

Covered Compersation _s 12,0r:¿55

Contributions

The County is required to contribute an actuarially determined amount annually to the Plan's trust. The

contribution amount is determined using actuarial methods and assumptions approved by the ACCG Plan trustees

and must satisfy the minimum contribution requirement contained in section 47-20 of the Georgia Code.

Administrative expenses are based on total covered compensation of active plan participants and are added to the
state-required annual funding requirement.

The Georgia Constitution enables the governing authority of the County, the Board of Commissioners, to

establish, and amend from time-to-time the contribution rates for the County and its plan participants.

Total contributions to the plan for the plan year ended December 3I,2017 were $1,860,344 which represents

15.4% of covered employee payroll.

Net Pension Liability

The County's net pension liability was measured as of December 31,2011, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January I,2017.
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NOTE 12 - RETIREMENT PLAN - Continued

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the January 1,2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Investrnent rate of return

Future salary increases

Mortalþ
Frfure payroll growth
Inflation

7 .25oÁ per year

4.50o/o plus an aged base scale ranging from - 1 .0%;o to | .5o/o

RP-2000 projected with Scale AA
5.50Yo per year

3.00Yo

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 7,2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period January l, 2010 to Decemb er 3I,20I4.

The Plan's financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis, modified to include unrealized gains or losses

on marketable securities owned by the Plan and incremental changes in the cash value of pre-retirement life
insurance policies owned by the trust. County contributions are recognized when due and the County has made a
formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable.

Investments in securities are valued at current market price. The trust fund is invested approximately 70o/o in
equities and30Yo in fixed income securities on a cost basis.

The long-tefln expected rate of return on pensions plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected retums, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce
the long-term expected rate of retum by weighting the expected future real rates of retum by the target asset

allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real
rates return for each major asset class are summarizedin the following table:

Asset Class

Domestic equúy
International equity
Fixed income

Target

Allocation

55Yo

l5Yo
3j%o

l00Yo

Long-Term
Eryected Real Rate

ofReturn

8.45%;o

4.29Yo

5.60Yo

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7 .25 percent. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that County contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially
determined contribution rates. Based on the assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore,
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NOTE 12 - RETIREMENT PLAN - Continued

the long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.

Chanees in the Net Pension Liability
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Net Pension

Liability Position Liability
(a) (b) (c): (a)-(b)

Balance, Jaruary 1,2077
Changes for the year:

Service cost
Interest on the total pension liabilfu
Liabiþ expense (gain/loss
Assumption change

Contribrfions from the employer
Net investnrent income

Administrative expenses

Benefit paynrents

Other changes

Net Changes

s 31,291 609 $18,503,939 512,787,670

(1,345,834)
769,817

3,209,948 (1,503,818)

733,717
2,219,956

27,840
70,551

1,860,344
2,924,504

(59,249)
(1,345,834)

(169,817)

733,717
2,219,956

27,840
70,551

(7,860,344)
(2,924,504)

59,249

1 706 130

Balance, December 37, 2077 _s 329eU22_ s 27,713,887 $ 11,283,852 *

*Includes net pension liability for the Development Authority (discretely presented component unit)

Sensitivitv of the net pension to chanses in the discount rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the County, calculated using the discounted rate of 7.25

percent, as well as what the County's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is one percentage point lower (6.25 percent) or one percentage point higher (8.25 percent) than the current
rate:

County's net persion liability

Discount Rate - 1olo

(6.2s%)

$ 15,853,040

Current Discount Rate

(7 .25Yo)

$ 11,283,852

Discount Rate + 1oá

(8.2s%)

s 7,491,932
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NOTE 12 - RETIREMENT PLAN - Continued

and Deferred Outflows of

For the year ended September 30,2018, the County recognized pension expense o1$2,253,465. At September
30,2018, the County reported deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows

ofResources

Deferred Inflows
ofResources

I,217,404
388,559

1

J___:!es,0?e_ 'k $ 1,605,963 'k

*Includes deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources for the Development Authority (discretely presented component unit)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized
in pension expense as follows:

Year ending

September 30

Employer conûrbúions after measurement date

Net diferences between projected and actual

net investment income

Liabiþ experience gain/lo ss

Assumption change

20t9
2020
2021
2022

$ 1,685,884

572,043
456,172

080,980

$

s 2,159,459
473,575

(154,222)
(289,696)

s 2,189,116

NOTE 13 - ACCRUED LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS

State and Federal laws and regulations require that the County perform certain maintenance and monitoring
functions at its landfill site for thirty years after closure which occurred in 1999. In addition to operating
expenditures related to current activities of the landfill, a liability is being recognized based on the future
postclosure care costs that will be incurred in the next 20 years. The estimated liability for landfill postclosure
care costs, which is recorded in the Solid V/aste Enterprise Fund, has a balance of $1,958,029 as of September
30,2018. This is based on 100% usage (filled) of the landfill. During 1998, the landfill reached fuIl capacity.
The estimated total current cost of the landfill postclosure care is based on the amount that would be paid if all
equipment, facilities, and services required to close, monitor, and maintain the landfill were incurred as of
September 30, 2018. However, the actual cost of postclosure may be higher due to inflation, changes in
technology, or changes in landfill laws and regulations.
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NOTE 14 _ JOINT VENTURE

Under Georgia law, the County, in conjunction with the thirteen counties and forty-one cities in east Georgia
known as the Central Savannah River Area (CSRA), is a member of the CSRA Regional Commission (CSRA
RC). The CSRA RC is a public organization that assists local governments in planning for common needs,

cooperating for mutual benefit, and coordinating for sound regional development. The operations are mainly
financed by membership dues and financial assistance provided by the State of Georgia. Membership in the
CSRA RC is required by the Official Code of Georgia Annotated (O.C.G.A,) $58-8-34 with annual dues based

on a per capitaamount. During the year ended September 30,2018, the County paid $ 15,682 in such dues, which
was based on a per capita amount of $.55. The CSRA RC Board membership is composed of one County official,
one city official, and one private sector individual from each county. O.C.G.A. $58-8-39.1 provides that the
County is liable for any debts or obligations of the CSRA RC. The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of
the CSRA RC may be obtained from:

CSRA Regional Commission
3023 River Watch Parkway, Suite A
Augusta, GA 30907

NOTE 15 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;

effors and omissions; and natural disasters. The County maintains commercial insurance coverage covering
those risks of loss. Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss

can be reasonably estimated. An excess coverage insurance policy covers individual claims. Liabilities include
an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported. Claim liabilities are calculated considering the
effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends including frequency and amount of pay-outs and other
economic and social factors. As of September 30,2018, the County had recorded no liability for claims. The
County is covered by commercial insurance.

The County has joined together with other governments in the state as part of the ACCG Group Self-Insurance
Workers Compensation Fund (ACCG-GSIWCF), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk
management and insurance program for member local governments. As part of this risk pool, the County is
obligated to pay all contributions and assessments as prescribed by the pool, to cooperate with the pool's agent

and attomeys, to follow loss reduction procedures established by the funds, and to report as promptly as possible,

and in accordance with any coverage descriptions issued, all incidents which could result in the funds being
required to pay any claim of loss.

The County is also to allow the pool's agents and attorneys to represent the County in investigation, settlement
discussions and all levels of litigation arising out of any claim made against the County within the scope of loss

protection furnished by the funds.

The funds are to defend and protect the members against liability or loss as prescribed in accordance with the
worker's compensation law of Georgia. The funds are to pay all costs taxed against the members in any legal
proceeding defended by the members, all interest accruing after entry ofjudgment, and all expenses incurred for
investigation, negotiation or defense.
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NOTE 15 - RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued

As a participant in the ACCG-GSIWCF that also provides claims administration and loss control services, the
County has a $200,000 loss retention. This program is accounted for in the General Fund.

Changes in the balances of worker's compensation claims through September 30, 2018, are as follows:

Unpaid claims, October 1,2017
Incurred claims

Claim payments
Adjustments

9337,735
l59,7ll

(290,609)
291,247

Unpaid claims, September 30,2018 $ 498,084

NOTE 16 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The County is party to various legal proceedings in the normal course of governmental operations. It is the

opinion of the County's management and legal counsel that these legal proceedings are not likely to have a
material, adverse impact on the financial condition of the County.

NOTE 17 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In preparing the financial statements, the County has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition
or disclosure through July 11,2019, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 18 _ CONTINGENT LIABILITY FOR BURKE COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY

Under an intergovernmental agreement, the County has agreed to guarantee the debt payrnents of the Hospital
Authority of Burke County. The Hospital Authority's recurring operating losses and negative net position and

cash flows raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. It is expected that the County
will have to make annual appropriations to the Hospital Authority to cover annual debt payments.

Total outstanding long-term debt for the Hospital Authority as of September 30, 2018 was 53,982,203. Scheduled
principal and interest payments on this long-term debt are as follows:

Year ending

September 30,
2019
2020
2021

Princþal Interest Total

s 1,573,485
1,528,788

879,930

$ 80,955
37,263

7,546

s 1,654,440
1,566,051

887,476

992,203 st25,764 s4,107,967$3,
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NOTE 19 - TAX ABATEMENTS

The Development Authority of Burke County (the "Authority') can enter into agreements for industrial projects
to encourage the creation of jobs and new capital investment through an "Invsstment Assistance Program."
Georgia case law and statutory provisions, including the Development Authorities Law (Title 36 Chapter 62 of
the Georgia Code Annotated), provide the Authority with the power to enter into such agreements with companies.

The Authority may accept title to real property (land and building) and personal property (machinery and

equipment) assets from a company in return for job creation andlor capital investment and provide a tax benefit
to the company through a lease agreement with the Authority. Agreements with respect to taxation of such assets

under the lease provide the terms and conditions of any tax abatement. In general, failure to create jobs and/or
investments as set forth in the agreements would result in a reduction (or claw back) of any tax abatements. The
Authority monitors compliance with performance and accountability agreements to ensure the companies meet
the agreed upon commitments.

For the Burke County Board of Commissioner's fiscal year ending September 30,2018, the cumulative real and
personal property tax not collected due to incentive agreements was $108,370.
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BURKE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BURKE COUNTY DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 201 8

2018 (1) 2017 (t) 2016 (1) 20rs (1)

Total pension liability
Service cost

Interest

Liability Experience (Cain)/Loss

Assumption Change

Benefit Payments

Net change in total pension liability
Total pension liability-beginning

Total pension liability-ending (a)

Plan fìduciary net position

Contributions-employer

Net investment income

Benefit Payments

Administrative expense

Other changes

Net change in plan fiduciary net position

Plan liduciary net position-beginning

Plan fiduciary net position-ending (b)

$ 733,717

2,219,856

27,840

70,5s 1

(1,34s,834)

s 677,762

2,158,989

(647,599)

966,954

(l,302,013)

s 667,642

1,927 ,851

1,054,616

1,081,367

(l,997 ,278)

s 629,361

1,844,208

(719,374)

1,706,130

31,291,609

I,854,093

29,437,516

2,734,199

26,703,318

1,754,195

24,949,123

s 32,99'7,739 $ 31,291,609 $ 29,437,516 $ 26,703,318

$ I,860,344

2,924,504

(1,345,834)

(59,249)

(t 69,8 1 7)

s 1,741,052

1,230,468

(l,302,013)

(62,691)

(209,147)

1,091,379 $

144,802

(1,997 ,278)
(6 l,855)

(172,681)

1,029,499

1,232,806

(719,374',)

(s7,294)

(183,427)

3,209,948

18,503,939

1,397 ,669

17,106,270

(995,633)

I 8,101 ,903

t,302,210

16,799,693

$ 21,713,887 $ 18,503,939 S 17,106,270 $ 18,101,903

$ 8,601 ,4 r 5Net pension liability-ending (a)-(b) $ 11,283,852 s 12,787,670 s 12,331,246

Plan liduciary net position as a pcrcentage of the total pension liability 65.8% 59.1o/. 58.1% 67.\o/n

Covered-employee payroll $ 12,073,955 s t2,002,527 $ 12,386,845 $ 11,843,126

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 93j% 1065% 99.6% 72.6%

( I ) Only fiscal years 2018,2017 ,2016, and 201 5 were available. The County will continue to pres€nt information for years available until a full l0-
year trend is compiled.
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BURKE COUNTY DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

2018

¡* $l,815,997

(1,860,344)

_9J!3,]3lr

12,073,955

ts.4%

$1,640,367

(1,741,0s2)

$ (100,ó85)

12,002,527

14.5%

$1,091,379

( I,091,379)

j-_

12,386,84s

8.8%

2017 2016 20t5

Actuarially determined contribution

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization Period

Asset Valuation Method

Actuarial Assumptions

Net Investment Rate of Retum

Projected Salary Increases

Cost of Living Adjustments

Retirement Age

Mortality

Entry Age Normal
Closed level dollar for remaining unfunded liability
N/A

Smoothed market value with a 5-year smoothing period

7.25%
4.50% plus an aged base scale ranging from -l.0% to 1.5%o

N/A

Probability of retirement calculated as l0% at age 55 to 60,20o/o at age 6l to 64,30% at age 65 to

69, and 100%;o at age 70

RP-2000 projected with Scale AA

'*

:*

'lrCovered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

*201 8 information will be determined after fiscal year end and will be included in the 20 I 8 valuation report

Notes to Schedule:

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates
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BURrG COUNTY, GEORGTA
COMBIMNG BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30 201 8

Total Nonmajor
Special Revenue

Funds

Total Nonmajor
Capital Projects

Funds

Total Nonmajor
Funds

ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Accounts receivable
Due from other funds

Intergovernmental receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable

Accrued payroll
Unearned revenue

Intergovernmental payable

Due to other funds
Total liabilities

Fund balance:
Restricted
Unassigned

Total fi¡nd balance

TOTALLIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

454,971

$ 704,041 _q_qg!4,s38_ $ 7,588,579

75,292
6,370
2,664

$ 634,634 $

346,076

280,066

764,402

430,402 1,679,102 ) 109,504

s 392,992

53,373
142,625

I 15,05 I

s 3,987,462

2,442,105
$ 4,380,4s4

2,442,105
53,373

142,625

570,022

$ 709,926

6,370
2,664

280,066
I,110,478

410,219
(136,580)

5,205,436 5,615,655
(136,s80)

273 639 5,205,436 5,479,07 5

$ 704,041 $ 6,884,538 $ 7,588,579
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FI.]ND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2018

Total Nonmajor
Special Revenue

Funds

Total Nonmajor
Capital Projects

Funds

Total Nonmajor
Funds

REVENUES
Taxes

Charges for services

Fees, fines and forfeitures
Intergovernmental
Interest

Other
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Judicial
Public safety

Culture and recreation
Health and welfare

Capital outlay:
Public safety

Public works
Housing and development

Intergovernmental
Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER (TJNDER)

EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FI-'ND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

(33,108) 1,042,912

$ 747,030
213,214

331,589

264

38,584

5,056,620
747,030
213,2t4
33 1,589

22,456
38,584

$ 5,056,620 $

22,192

1,330,681 5 t2 6,409,493

18 I ,578
980,337
128,077

73,797

12,750
2,634,102

280,066
1,108,982

I 8 1,578

980,337

128,077

73,797

12,750

2,634,102
280,066

1,109,992

1,363,789 4,035,900 5,399,689

1,009,804

218,073
(5,000) (50,000)

218,073
(55,000)

213.073 (s0,000) 163,073

179,965

93,674

s 273,639

992,912

4,212,524

1,172,977

4,306,198

_$ 5205,ß6_ _s 5,479,075_
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditures for capital outlays.

T-SPLOST Fund - This fund accounts for capital transportation projects financed from T-SPLOST funds.

SPLOST IV Fund - This capital projects fund was established to account for expenditures on capital
improvements made by the County and financed through revenues from a special purpose local option sales tax.
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FLINDS
SEPTEMBER 30,20I8

T-SPLOST
Capital Projects

Fund

SPLOST IV
Capital Projects

Fund

Total Nonmajor
Capital Projects

Funds

ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Intergovernmental receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable

Intergovernmental payable

Due to other funds

Total liabilities
Fund balance:

Restricted
Total fund balance

TOTALLIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

_$ 4J20Art s 2,764,127 $ 6,884,538

$ 126,494

764,402

$ 508,140
280,066

$ 634,634
290,066
764,402

890,896 788,206 1,679,102

$ 3,986,462

133,949

1,000

2,442,105
321,022

s 3,987,462
2,442,105

454,971

$

3,229,5r5
3,229,515

1,975,921
I

5,205,436
5,205,436I

_s 4,l204ll_ $ 2,764,t27 $ 6,884,538

-49-



BURKE COUNTY, GEORGTA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FLINDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2018

T-SPLOST
Capital Projects

Fund

SPLOST IV
Capital Projects

Fund

Total Nonmajor
Capital Projects

Funds

REVENUES
Taxes

Interest
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay:

Public safety

Public works
Housing and development

Intergovernmental
Total expenditures

$ 1,684,479
16,585

s 3,372,141
5"607

5,056,620
22,192

$

1,701,064 J 77 748

12,7 50
29

280,066
1,108,982

5,078,812

2,634,073

2,634,073 1,401,827 4,035,900

EXCESS (DEFTCTENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER(IJNDER)
EXPENDITURES (933,009) 1,97 5,921 1,042,972

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (50,000) (50,000)

NET CHANGE INFLIND BALANCES (983,009) 1,97 5,92t 992,912

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF

YEAR 4,212,524 4,2L2,524

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 3,229,515 $ 1,975,92I s 5,205,436

12,750
2,634,102

280,066
1,108,982
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for proceeds from specific revenue sources which are legally restricted
to expenditures for specific purposes.

Law Librarv Fund - This fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures associated with the law
library of Burke County, which is available for public use.

Drus Enforcement Fund - This fund was established by the State of Georgia and is used to account for revenues

and expenditures associated with the DARE program.

Treatment and Education - This fund was established by the State of Georgia and is used to account

for revenues and expenditures associated with drug abuse treatment and education programs relating to controlled
substances.

Public Librarv Fund - This fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures associated with the Burke
County Library, which is available for public use.

Small Grants Fund - This fund is used to account for grant revenues not accounted for in another fund.

Emergencv Telephone System Fund - This fund is used to account for collection of 91 1 phone surcharges used

for operation and maintenance of the 911 phone system.

JaiI Surcharge Fund - This fund is used to account for collection of fines that are to be used for jail maintenance

and improvements.

Victims Assistance Fund - This fund is used to account for collection of fines that are to be used to assist Burke
County residents who are the victim of violent crimes.

Sunnlemental Services Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection of fines that are to be

used for community treatment programs in the local courts.

Sheriffs Commissions Fund - This fund was established to account for funds received by the Sheriffs
department for commissions on inmate telephone calls, commissary purchases, and snack sales.

Larse Grants Fund - This fund is used to account for grant revenues not accounted for in another fund.

Accountabilitv Court Fund - This fund was established to account for funds received by the Accountability
Court for participant fees and intergovernmental revenues used to provide program services to those ordered to

attend the Accountability Court by the State Court for drug related offenses.
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BURKE COI.INTY, GEORGIA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAIOR SPECIAL REVENUE FI.INDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 20I8

Law

Fund
Library

Drug
Enforcement

Fund

Drug
Treaûnent

& Education
Fund

Public
Library
Fund

84,136

Emergency
Telephone

System
Fund

$ 79,011
45,670

Jail
Surcharge

Fund

Small
Grants
Fund

ASSETS

Cash

Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Intergovernmental receivable

TOTALASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FI-IND BALANCE
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll
Unearned revenue
Due to other funds

Total liabilities
Fund balance:

Restricted
Unassigned

Tot¿l fund balance

TOTALLIABILITIES AND
FT]ND BALANCE

$ 20,498 $ 38,647 $ i3,594 $ 84,136

$ 20,498 $ 38,647 $ 13,594

$ 88,986

$ 84,136 S 88,986 8 t24,681 $ 83,120

$ 31,661 $

$ 67,618
7,703
7,799

412
6,370

3,376 9,642

$ 20,498 35,271 53,952$84,136

20.498 35.271 3,952

$ 20.498 $ 38,647 $ 13,s94 _q_84J36_

2,664
70.768 233,286

240.068105.093

$ 83,120
(16,107) (1 15,387)
(16,107) (1 15,387) 83.120

$ 88.986 $ 124.681 $ 83,120

$ 3.376 S 9,642
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FLINDS
SEPTEMBER 30^ 20I8

Victims
Assistance

Fund

Supplemental

Juvenile
Services

Fund

Sheriffs
Commissions

Fund

s 69,747

r32,962

Accountability
Court
Fund

Total
Nonmajor

Special

Revenue

Funds

Large
Grants

Fund
ASSETS

Cash

Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Intergovemmental receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FLTND BALANCE
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll
Unearned revenue

Due to other funds

Total liabilities
Fund balance:

Restricted
Unassigned

Total fund balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

$ i0,158 $ 9,493

731

$ 10,889 _q_%483_

$ 100 $ 392,992
53,373

142,625
115.051

1,964
s 25,334

s 202.609 $ 2,064 $ 2s.334 $ 704.041

$ 35,739 S 4,723 $ 2,757 $

4,723

25,004
27 761

75,292
6,310
2,664

346,076
430,402

$ 4,000
4,000

$ 10,889

35 739

6,889 $ 9,483 766,870

6,889 9,483

(2,6s9) Q.427\
410,219

û36.580)
166,870 (2-6s9\ Q.42'.7\ 273.639

s 202.609 $ 2.064 $ 2s.334 $ 704.041$ 9,483
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FI.IND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FTINDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30.2018

Law
Library
Fund

22.451

15,313

15.313

Drug
Enforcement

Fund

9

3s"265

Drug
Treatment

& Education
Fund

t2

9,725

4,642

4,642

5.083

(5,000)
(5.000)

83

3.869

s 3,9s2

$ 18,923
10,855
95,050

57
4.224

Small

Grants
Fund

s 132p2s

34.144

Emergency

Telephone
System

Fund

s 372,96s

78
216

Jail
Surcharge

Fund

s 57,146
15,501

63

72,710

72,710

Public
Library
Fund

REVENUES
Charges for services
Fees, fines and forfeitures
Intergovernmental
Inte¡est

Other
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Cunent:
Judicial
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Health and welfare

Total expenditures

g 22,4st $ 35,256 $ 9,713

825

r29.r09 167-069 3',73-259

t79,109

4-067

sst,44s
t28,077

128,07'7 I 83,1 76 551,445

1,032 (16.10î (178.186)

133,007

133.00'7

83.1 04 (70.208)

82s

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 7,t38 34.440

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 7,138 34,440

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF

YEAR 13-360 831

1,032 (16,107) (4s,r79) 72,7t0

10,410

_q_83,129_FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 20,498 $ 35,271

-54-
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FI.IND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

REVENUES
Charges for services

Fees, fines and forfeitures
Intergovemmental
Interest
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Judicial
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Health and welfare

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER(UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other hnancing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF
YEAR

$ 33,294 $ 2,403

Sheriffs
Commissions

Fund

s 3ss,t42

7

2.410

244,316

244,316

2.410 I 10.826

2,4t0 ltQ,826

7,073 56.044

Victims
Assistance

Fund

38

33.332

23.000
23,000

10332

10,332

(3.443)

Supplemental
Juvenile
Services

Fund

Large
Grants
Fund

$ 46,730
46,730

Accountability
Court
Fund

$ 42,096
88,1 13

Total
Nonmajor

Special
Revenue

Funds

s 747,030
2t3,214
331,589

264
38,584

355,142 130.209 1.330.681

166,26s 181,578

980,337
128,077

t-1 797
166.265 1.363.789

$ 6,889 $ e,483 $ 166,870 $ (2,659)

(46.730\ (36.0s6) (33. r 08)

44,07t 40,99s 218,073
t5.000)

44.071 40.99s 213.073

(2,659) 4,939 179,965

(7.366], 93.674

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
LAV/ LIBRARY FLIND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITI,IRES AND CHANGES IN FI.IND BALANCE
BTIDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 20r8

Original and

Final Budget Actual

Variance

Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES

Fines, fees, and forfeitures

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Judicial

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(TINDER) EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FI.IND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

$ 9,000 s 22,451 $ 13,451

16,000 15,313 687

(7,000) 7,1.38 14,138

13,360 13,360

$ 6,360 $ 20,498 $ 14,138
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
DRUG ENFORCEMENT FIIND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FTIND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Original and

Final Budget Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES

Fines, fees and forfeitures

Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Public safety

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(I-INDER) EXPENDITURE S

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FI-IND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

35,265 35,265

3,000 825 2,1,75

(3,000) 34,440 37,440

831 831

_q___9,16e)- _$ 3s271_ _$ 37A40

$ $ 35,256

9

$ 35,256

9
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGTA

DRUG TREATMENT & EDUCATION FI.IND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FI.JND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

REVENUES

Fines, fees and forfeitures

Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Public safety

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER

(LINDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USES

Transfers out

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FI.IND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

Original and

Final Budget

Variance
Positive

Actual (Negative)

$ 10,000 $ (287)

T2

10,000 9,725 (27s)

5,000 4,642 358

5,000 4,642 358

5,000 5,083 83

(5,000) (5,000)

83

3,869 3,869

$ 3,869 $ 3,952 $ 83

9,7r3
l2

$

83
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BURKE COUNTY, GBORGIA
PUBLIC LIBRARY FI.IND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Original and

Final Budget Actual

Variance

Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES

Intergovemmental

Charges for services

Fines

lnterest

Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITTIRES
Current:

Culture and recreation

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(I-INDER) EXPENDITURES

FI.'ND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

124,117 129,709 4,992

r2r,504 128,077 (6,573)

2,613 1.,032 (1,581)

83,104

$ 85,717 $ 84,136 $ (1,581)

$ 95,050

13,625

10,850

66

4,526

$ 95,050

18,923

10,855

57

4,224

5,298

5

(e)

(302)

$

83,104
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
SMALL GRANTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETAND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30" 2018

Original
Budget

Final
Budget Actual

Variance

Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES

Intergovemmental

Other
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public safety

Health and welfare

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(I.]NDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USES

Transfers out

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OFYEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OFYEAR

$ s 268,784

33,500
$ 132,925

34,144
$ (13s,859)

644

302,284 167,069

270,485

3,000

179,109

4,067

35,21

91,376

(1,067)

273,485 183,176 90,309

28,799 (16,107) (44,906)

(28,799) 28 799

(t6,107) (16,107)

$ $ $ (16,107) $ (16,107)
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BURKE COLTNTY, GEORGTA
EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM FLIND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITTIRES AND CHANGES IN FLIND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Original
and Final

Budget Actual

Variance

Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES

Charges for services

Interest

Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public safety

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(LINDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers in

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FI-]ND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

$ 372,965

78

216

386,850 373,259 (13,591)

609,581 551,445 58,136

(222,731) (178,186) 44,545

222,737 133,007 (89,724)

(45,179) (45,179)

(70,208) (70,208)

-q-00,208)-
$ (115,387) $ (45,179)

$ 386,800

50

$ (13,835)

28

2t6
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BuRr(E COUNTY, GEORGTA
JAIL SURCHARGE FUND

SCHEDTILE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES INFUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2018

Original

Budget

Final

Budget Actual

Variance

Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES
Fees, fines and forfeitures
Intergovernmental

Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Public safety

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER

(TINDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in

NET CHANGE IN FI.IND BALANCES

FLIND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

$ 30,000 $ 30,000 $ 57,146
15,501

63

27,146
15,501

33

$

30 30

30,030 30,030 72,710 42,680

120,030 127,829 127,829

(90,000) (97,799) 72,710 170,509

7,799

(90,000)

10,410

(7,799)

(90,000) 72,710 t62,710

10,410 10,410

$ (79,590) $ (79,s90) $ 83,120 $ 162,710
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BURKE COLhITY, GEORGIA
VICTIMS ASSISTANCE FI.IND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FI.IND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2018

Original

and Final

Budget Actual

Variance

Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES

Fines, fees and forfeitures

Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Health and welfare

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER (I.INDER) EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FIIND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

$ 23,000 s 33,294

38

$ 10,294

38

23,000 33,332 10,332

23,000 23,000

r0,332 r0,332

(3,443) (3,443)

$ (3,443) $ 6,889 $ 10,332
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BT]RKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
SUPPLEMENTAL JWENILE SERVICES FI.IND

SCHEDI'LE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FI.IND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Original
and Final
Budget Actual

Variance

Positive
(Negative)

REVENT/ES

Fines, fees and forfeitures

Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Judicial

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(T]NDER) EXPENDITURES

FLIND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 73 $ 9,483

$ 3,000 $ 2,403

7

(se7)
7

$

3,000

10,000

2,410 (se0)

10,000

(7,000)

7,073

2,41.0

7,073

9,410

$ 9,470
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
SHERIFF'S COMMIS SIONS FLIND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FLTND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2018

Original

Original
Budget

Final

Budget Actual

Variance

Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES
Vendor commissions

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Public safety

Capital outlay:

Public safety

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(I-'NDER) EXPENDITURES

FLIND BALANCES, BEGINMNG OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

$ 35,000 $ 35,000 $ 355,142 S 320,142

5,000 244,316 (244,316)

35,000 30,000 35,000

35,000 35,000 244,316 (209,316)

110,826 110,826

56,044 56,044 56,044

$ 56,044 S 56,044 S 166,870 $ 110,826
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
LARGE GRANTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETAND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI8

Original
Budget

Final
Budget Actual

Variance

Positive

(Negative)

REVENUES

Intergovernmental

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Health and welfare

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USES

Transfers in

NET CHANGE IN FI-IND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OFYEAR

s 734,845 $ (734,845)

$ 20,000 782,365 $ 46,730 735,635

(20,000) (47,520) (46,730)

47,520 44,071 (3,449)

(20,000) (2,659) (2,659)

$ (2o,ooo) $ $ (2,659) $ (2,659)

790
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BURr(E COUNTY, GEORGIA
ACCOI-INTABILITY COURT FI.]ND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FLTND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Original

Budget

Final

Budget Actual

Variance

Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES

Fines, fees and forfeitures

Intergovernmental

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Judicial

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER (I.]NDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USES

Transfers in

NET CHANGE IN FLIND BALANCES

FLIND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FI-IND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

1 18,500 l2l,l50 9,059

159,200 162,145 166,265 (4,t20)

(40,700) (40,995) (36,056) 4,939

40,700 40,995 40,995

4,939 4,939

(7,366) (7,366) (7,3 66)

$ (7,366) $ (7,366) $ (2,427) s 4,939

$ 44,000

74,500

$ 46,650

74,500

s 42,096

88,1 l3
130,209

$ (4,554)

13,6L3
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department to
other departments of the govemment on a cost reimbursement basis.

Vehicle Maintenance Fund - This fund is used to account for maintenance costs of County vehicles.

tr'acilities Maintenance Fund - This fund is used to account for allocation of costs associated with operations

and maintenance of County buildings.
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30.20I8

Vehicle
Maintenance

Facilities
Maintenance Total

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Interfund receivable
Inventory
Total current assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Capital Assets

Buildings and improvements

Machinery and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation
Total Capital Assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Resources related to pensions

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll
Compensated absences payable

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities :

Compensated absences payable (net ofcurrent portion)
Net pension obligation

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOV/S OF RESOURCES
Resources related to pensions

NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets

Unrestricted

I ,01 1,459 386,497 1,397,956

1,103,976

738,013
(72',7,044)

192,6"15 922,270 l,l14,g45

1,204,134 1,308,767 2,512,901

120,024 67 623 187,647

$ 463,996
547,463

s 386,497 $ 850,493

547,463

19,588

344,888
(171,801)

1,094,399

393,125
(555,243)

152,163

19,228

1,425

171,594

14,699

187,976 360,792

323,757
33,927

3,109

27,978
629,577

683

172,816

12,827
402,875

I 5,15 I
226,702

415,702 241.853 657,555

588,518 429.829 1,018,347

49,900

192,675
494,065

922,270
(7,340)

1,114,945
486,725

31,631 80,531

Total Net Position
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BURI(E COUNTY, GEORGIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES INNET POSITION

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30" 2OI8

Vehicle
Maintenance

Facilities
Maintenance Total

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

Other

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries

Employee benefits
Purchased services

Materials and supplies

Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

TOTAL OPERATTNG TNCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Gain on sale of capital assets

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS

TRANSFERS rN(OUT)

CHANGE INNET POSITION

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

2,488,91 I 1,029,801 3,519,712

g 2,487,664
L,247

$ 1,029,801 g 3,5L7,465
1,247

527,933
219,217

t26,517
1,506,095

17,413

363,746

123,222

1 86,1 83

123,502
53,082

89t,679
342,439
3L2,700

t,629,s97
70,495

2,397,175 849,735 3,246,910

180,066 271,8029t,736

1,610 1,610

93,346

114,096

180,066

372,500

552,566

362,364

273,412

486,596

760,008

841 662

$ 686,740 $ 914,930 $ 1,601,670

207,442

479.298
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI8

Vehicle
Maintenance

Facilities
Maintenance Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from interfund charges

Cash pa¡..rnents to employees for salaries and benefits

Cash payments for goods and services

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interfund transfers

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of assets

Purchase of capital assets

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNINC OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

RECONCILTATTON OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss)

Depreciation
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash

provided (used) by operating activities:
(Increase) dec¡ease in assets:

Interfund receivables
Inventory

(lncrease) decrease in deferred outflows ofresources - resources

related to pensions

Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows ofresources - resources

related to pensions

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Compensated absences payable

Net pension obligation

Total cash provided (used) by operating activities

$ 2,372,621
(747,727)

847,134
(476,402)
(r73,084)

s 3,219,755
(1,224,129)
(1,768,612)

$

( I ,595 .528)
29,366 197,648 227,014

114,096 372,s00 486,596

1 ,610

143,462\

(570,148)
1,610

(7|s,220)

(s70, I 48) (7r3,ó10)

$$ $

$ 91,736

17,413

(116,290)
(63,176)

11,966

30,850

1 80,066

53,082

(182,667)

8,245

21,256

136,601

3,268
7,179

(29,382)

271,802
70,495

(298,957)
(63,176)

20,21t

52,106

236,861
4,160
5,539

(72,027)

$ $

r 00,260

892
(1,640)

(42,645)

$ 29,366 197.648 $ 227,014$
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets when a govefirmental unit is functioning either as a trustee or as

an agent for another party.Because the County is functioning in a fiduciary capacity, the authority to employ,
dispose of, or otherwise use the assets is determined not by a legislative body or oversight board, but by the public
laws and private agreements that created the trustee or agency relationship.

Sheriff Fund - This fund is used to account for all monies received by the Sheriffls department on behalf of
individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, and other funds.

Tax Commissioner Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection of various taxes, including property
taxes, and the payrnent to Burke County and other taxing units of the various taxes collected on their behalf.

Clerk of Superior Court Fund - This fund is used to account for all monies received by the Clerk of Superior
Court on behalf of individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, and other funds.

Probate Court Fund - This fund is used to account for all monies received by the Probate Court on behalf of
individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, and other funds.

Masistrate Court Fund - This fund is used to account for all monies received by the Magistrate Court on behalf
of individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, and other funds.
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
COMBIMNG STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCYFUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30.20I8

Tax Probate

Court

Clerk of
Courts

Magistrate

Court Sheriff TotalCommissioner

ASSETS

Cash

LIABILITIES
Due to other entities and individuals

$ 636,624 $ $ 132,726 $ 145 _qJ_3 r,3ee_ _q_e00,8e1_

$ 636,624 $ s 132,726 $ 145 $ 131,399 $ 900,894
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES INASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FI.INDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 201 8

Balance

October I 2017 Additions Deductions

Balance

September 30, 2018

Tax Commissioner
Assets

Cash

Liabilities
Due to other entities and individuals

Probate Court
Assets

Cash

Liabilities
Due to other entities and individuals

Clerk of Courts
Assets

Cash

Liabilities
Due to other entities and individuals

Magistrate Court
Assets

Cash

Liabilities
Due to other entities and individuals

Sheriff
Assets

Cash

Liabilities
Due to other entities and individuals

Total Agency Funds
Assets

Cash

Liabilities
Due to other entities and individuals

$ 33,ss4 $ 547,347 g 449,502 $

s 635,246 $ 86,559 ,658 $ 86,s58,280 $ 636,624

s 635,246 $ 86,559,658 $ 86,558,280 $ 636,624

$ $ 46,054 $ 46,054 $

$ $ 46,054 $ 46,054 $

$ 128,603 $ 1,247,528 S r,243.40s $ 132,726

$ 128.603 $ 1,247,528 $ 1,243,405 $ 132,726

$ 4,104 s 273,296 $ 277,2ss $ 145

$ 4,104 $ 273,296 $ 277,255 $ t45

$ 33,554 s 547,347 $ 449,502 $ 131,399

131,399

$ 801,507 $ $ 88,574,496 $ 900,894

$ 801,507 $
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
SCI]EDULE OF PROJECTS PAID WITH SPECIAL

PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX PROCEEDS

FOR TI-IE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2018

SPLOST III Fund

Proiect

Countywide projects

Judicial center'

Jail addition

Burke County

EOC/91 I center

Recreation improvements

lndusûial Park expansion

Building conshuction and renovations

Airport projects

Roads and bridges projects and equipment

Firetrucks

Ambulances

Patrol cars

Water and sewer improvements

L.andfi ll building projects

Waynesboro

Water & sewer improvements, roads, streets,

sidewalks, drainage irnprovements,

buildings, patrol vehicles and utility equipment

Sardis

Water, sewer, and street improvements,

recreation and beautification pl'ojects,

capital equipment

Midville
Water and sewer system improvernents,

sffeet improvements and major equiprnent,

major police equipment, City Hall equiprnent,

Community House improvements

Keysville

Water and sewer system projects, Multi-
pu¡pose building project, street & drainage

improvements and equipment

Gimrd

Waterworks improvements, building
renovations and additions, sueet and sidewalk

improvements

Original
Estimated

Cost

Prior
Years

Curent
Year Total

Estimated

Percentage

of
Cornpletion

$ 1s,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

I,000,000

2,s00,000

1,500,000

200,000

8,040,000

1,500,000

600,000

500,000

6,000,000

340,000

1,557 ,656
309,0r2

1,414,160

671,526

26,230

2,489,261

488,99s

269,000

23s,463

1,557,656

309,0 12

1,504,38 I

67 |,526
89,t46

3,340,695

910,616

269,000

303,369

$ 3,ó03,176 s 7,ss0,362 $ 11,153,s38 74%

78%
31%
600/o

45o/o

4s%
42%

6r%
4s%
6r%
0%

93%

60%

60%

60%

60%

60%

0%

90,221

62,916

851,434

421,621

67,906

314,825 314,825

10,140,000 5,'t35,834 353,438 6,089,272

2,340,000 1,323,652 81,564 t,405,216

I,170,000 661,827 40,782 702,609

780,000 441,217 27,t88 468,405

390,000 220,607 t3,s94 234,201

$ s6,000,000 $ 19,762,441 9,561,026 g 29,323,467 s2%

Roads, streets, and bridge costs funded by state LMIG prograrn

Judicial center funded by the Other Capital Projects Fund

Airport projects funded by federal and state grant funds

SPLOST lll fund total expenditures $ 14,823,751

1,822,744

3,224,04'l

215,974
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BURKE COUNTY, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF PROJECTS PAID WITH SPECIAL

PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX PROCEEDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2018

SPLOST IV Fund

Buúe County

EOC/91 I center

Jail irnprovements

Recreation improvements

lndustrial Park expansion

Building consbuction and renovations

Airport projects

Roads and bridges projects and equipment

Fire equipment

EMA irnprovements

EMS equipment

l¿w enforcement equiprnent

Hospital equipment and renovations

Animal shelter

Waynesboro

Water & sewer improvements, loads, strcets,

sidewalks, drainage improvements,

buildings, recreation projects, equipment

Sardis

Water, sewer, and street improvernents,

rccreation and beautification projects,

capital equipment

Midville
Water and sewer systern irnprovements,

sû'eet implovements and major equipment,

rnajor police equiprnent, building improvements

Keysville

Water and sewer system pfojects, city hall and

rnulti-purpose building projects, sheet and dlainage

improvements and equiprnent, recreation

improvements and equipment, land acquisition

Girard

Building renovations and additions, street,

sidewalk and park improvernents

Videfte

Waler system irnprovements

Original
Estûnated

Cost

Expenditures

Prior
Years

Cun'ent
Year Total

Estimated

Percentage

of
Completion

$ 3,000,000

500,000

2,000,000

2,516,000

1,800,300

4s0,000

5,000,000
l,000,000

400,000

600,000

1,200,000

1,365,000

500,000

$ 0%

0o/o

0%

tt%
0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

1%

0%

0%

ll%

llo/o

1l%

2929

$ 280,066 $ 280,066

12,750 12,'750

836,458 836,4s8

144,357 144,357

38,'787 38,787

7,5t4,400

r,296,840

348,450

454,500

203,010

145,440

50,592

22,598

16,190

50,592

22,598

I 6,1 90

tt%

lt%

t1%
$ 30,293,940 $ $ 1,401,827 $ 1,40 r,827 5%
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INDEPEI\DENT ATJDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIAI{CE AND OTIIER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G OWRNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Commissioners
Burke County, Georgia

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Søtes of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of Burke County, Georgia, as of and for the year ended September 30,2018, and the related
notes to the frnancial statements, which collectively comprise Burke County, Georgia's basic financial statements
and have issued our report thereon dated July 11,2019. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who
audited the frnancial statements of the Burke County Board of Health (Health Department) and the Burke County
Hospital Authority, discretely presented component units, as described in our report on Burke County, Georgia's
financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditorso testing of internal control over
financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Burke County, Georgiaos internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Burke County's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of Burke County, Georgia's internal control.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.
However, as described below, we did identify certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described below
as 2018-1 through 2018-4 to be material weaknesses.
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A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe

than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider
the deficiency described below as 2018-5 to be a significant deficiency.

2018'l Recording of year end accruals for the financial statements
The County's procedures to make sure all year end accruals such as receivables, accounts payable,
prepaid items, and deferred inflows ofresources are included inthe financial statements were inadequate
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018. Many of the adjusting journal entries needed to record

these accruals were material to the County's financial statements.

County response: We concur with these findings, and we will implement procedures to make sure all
accruals are included in the year-end financial statements.

2018-2 Accounting for capital assets

We noted that the County did not have a process to accumulate information on current year additions and

disposals to capital assets. The County should have procedures in place to ensure that all relevant

information related to capital assets is forwarded to a designated person responsible for maintaining capital
asset records. The information accumulated on additions and disposals should be provided to the auditors

after the County's fiscal year end.

County response: We concur with this finding, and we will implement procedures to track capital asset

purchases and disposals.

2018-3 Transaction Posting
During our audit we noted numerous cash transactions that were posted to the incorrect fiscal year's
general ledger. These entries caused the ledger balances of these cash accounts to be incorrect. The timely
preparation of monthly bank reconciliations will assist in ensuring that all transactions have been recorded

in the proper period.

County Response: We concur with this finding. We will implement procedures to ensure that all
transactions are properly posted in the general ledger.

2018-4 Grant revenues
During our audit we noted that grant revenues receivable were not recorded for certain grant funds that
were due to the County at year-end. In addition, some grant revenues were posted to the wrong fund. This
resulted in several funds with understated grant revenues and receivables. Grant revenues should be

reconciled to award documents to ensure all grant expenses and revenue have been properly recorded.

County Response: We concur with this finding. We will implement procedures to ensure that all grant

activity is properly posted in the general ledger.

2018-5 Purchasing procedures
During our audit we noted several disbursements for which the County's purchasing policy was not
followed. Examples include disbursements for which purchase orders were not obtained when required or
obtained after the fact. This lack of adherence to the approved policies and procedures may allow
purchases that exceed budget limitations or cause the County to overpay for purchases that should be

subject to the bidding process.

County Response: We concur with this finding. We will stress the importance of following policies and

procedures to all department heads.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonabls assurance about whether Burke County, Georgia's financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Audítíng Standards.

Burke County, Georgia's Response to Findings

Burke County, Georgia's response to the findings identified in our audit are described above. Burke County,
Georgia's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements

and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

ëfo'Åt", Ðra!- + ft"tutL
Statesboro, Georgia
July 11,2019
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